
  
 

Jeff Hughes 
Head of Democratic and 
Legal Support Services 

 

 
This agenda has been printed using 100% recycled paper 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

MEETING : EAST HERTS COUNCIL AND STEVENAGE 
BOROUGH COUNCIL JOINT REVENUES AND 
BENEFITS COMMITTEE 

VENUE : ROOM 27, WALLFIELDS, HERTFORD 

DATE : MONDAY 29TH JUNE, 2015 

TIME : 6.00 PM 
 
MEMBERS OF THE COMMITTEE 
 
EAST HERTS COUNCIL: 
  
Councillors: E Buckmaster, L Haysey and G Williamson. 
 
Substitutes: G McAndrew. 
 
(Note:  Substitution arrangements must be notified by the absent Member 
to Democratic Services 24 hours before the meeting). 
 
STEVENAGE BOROUGH COUNCIL: 
 
Councillors: Mrs J Lloyd, J Thomas and A Webb. 
 
Substitutes: R Raynor. 
 

CONTACT OFFICER: Peter Mannings 
01279 502174 

E-mail: peter.mannings@eastherts.gov.uk 

 

Public Document Pack



 

 

DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTERESTS 
 
1. A Member, present at a meeting of the Authority, or any committee, 

sub-committee, joint committee or joint sub-committee of the 
Authority, with a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (DPI) in any matter to 
be considered or being considered at a meeting: 

 

• must not participate in any discussion of the matter at the 
meeting; 

 

• must not participate in any vote taken on the matter at the 
meeting; 

 

• must disclose the interest to the meeting, whether registered or 
not, subject to the provisions of section 32 of the Localism Act 
2011; 

 

• if the interest is not registered and is not the subject of a 
pending notification, must notify the Monitoring Officer of the 
interest within 28 days; 

 

• must leave the room while any discussion or voting takes place. 
 
2. A DPI is an interest of a Member or their partner (which means 

spouse or civil partner, a person with whom they are living as 
husband or wife, or a person with whom they are living as if they were 
civil partners) within the descriptions as defined in the Localism Act 
2011. 

 
3. The Authority may grant a Member dispensation, but only in limited 

circumstances, to enable him/her to participate and vote on a matter 
in which they have a DPI. 

 
4. It is a criminal offence to: 
 

• fail to disclose a disclosable pecuniary interest at a meeting if it 
is not on the register; 

• fail to notify the Monitoring Officer, within 28 days, of a DPI that 
is not on the register that a Member disclosed to a meeting; 

• participate in any discussion or vote on a matter in which a 
Member has a DPI; 

• knowingly or recklessly provide information that is false or 
misleading in notifying the Monitoring Officer of a DPI or in 
disclosing such interest to a meeting. 



 

 

 
(Note: The criminal penalties available to a court are to impose a 

fine not exceeding level 5 on the standard scale and 
disqualification from being a councillor for up to 5 years.)  

               
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Audio/Visual Recording of meetings 
 
Everyone is welcome to record meetings of the Council and its 
Committees using whatever, non-disruptive, methods you 
think are suitable, which may include social media of any kind, 
such as tweeting, blogging or Facebook.  However, oral 
reporting or commentary is prohibited.  If you have any 
questions about this please contact Democratic Services 
(members of the press should contact the Press Office).  
Please note that the Chairman of the meeting has the 
discretion to halt any recording for a number of reasons, 
including disruption caused by the filming or the nature of the 
business being conducted.  Anyone filming a meeting is asked 
to focus only on those actively participating, but please also be 
aware that you may be filmed whilst attending a council 
meeting and that attendance at the meeting signifies your 
agreement to this. 



 

 

AGENDA: 
 

1. Appointment of Chairman and Vice–Chairman  
 

2. Apologies  
 

 To receive apologies for absence.  
 

3. Chairman's Announcements  
 

4. Declarations of Interest  
 

 To receive any Member(s)’ Declaration(s) of Interest.  
 

5. Minutes – 19 January 2015 (Pages 5 – 6). 
 

 To confirm the Minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on Monday 
19 January 2015.  
 

6. Quarterly Update (Pages 7 – 18). 
 

7. Urgent Business  
 

 To consider such other business as, in the opinion of the Chairman of the 
meeting, is of sufficient urgency to warrant consideration and is not likely to 
involve the disclosure of exempt information.  
 

 



JOINT REVENUES AND BENEFITS EXECUTIVE 

 

MINUTES 

 

Date: Monday 19 January 2015 
Time: 6.00 p.m. 

Place: Shimkent Room, Daneshill House, Stevenage  
 

Present: Stevenage Borough Councillors:Mrs J Lloyd (Vice-Chairman), J 
Thomasand A Webb. 
 
East Herts Councillors: L Haysey and G McAndrew. 

In Attendance: C Fletcher (Assistant Director Finance – SBC), A Taylor 
(Director of Finance and Support Services – East Herts 
Council)and S Tarran (Head of Revenues and Benefits). 

Start/End 

Time: 

Start Time: 6.00 p.m. 
End Time:  6.25p.m. 

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

Councillor L Haysey in the Chair. 
 
Apologies for absence were received from CouncillorM Tindale and S 
Crudgington (Strategic Director Resources – SBC). 

 
There were no declarations of interest.  
  

2.   MINUTES – 13 OCTOBER 2014 
 

It was RESOLVED that the Minutes of the meeting of held on 13 
October 2014 be approved as a correct record and signed by the Chair. 
 

3.   QUARTERLY UPDATE 
The Committee received a report detailing the current position in the 
following areas: 
 

• Performance Reporting 

• Other Challenges. 
 

In addition the report contained proposals that the Committee move to 
an annual meeting schedule and that the S151 Officers continue to 
determine the budget proposals for the shared service. 

 
The Committee was advised that the resizing proposal had been 
discussed at East Herts Council and was an agenda item for the 
meeting of the Executive at Stevenage Borough Council on 20 
January. 
 
The Committee was further advised that although there had been a 

 

  
Agenda Item 5

Page 5



marginal reduction in the number of cases referred from the DWP there 
had been a substantial increase in workload due to the complexity of 
those cases. 
 
Members then asked a number of detailed questions with regard to the 
Spare Room Subsidy and the rules concerning the minimum size for 
bedrooms, which were answered by the Officers.  It was noted that the 
number of bedrooms per property was specified in the tenancy 
agreement for that property and could only be amended, through 
appeal, should that property become vacant. 
 
Members commented on the good working relationships that had 
developed between the two Councils and the success of the shared 
service.  It was noted that this success had enabled the proposal to 
move to an annual meeting for the Committee and it was requested 
that thanks to all those involved in the process be recorded in the 
Minutes.  
 
It was RESOLVED: 
 
1. That the report be received and noted. 
2. That the Committee meet annually in June, and 
3. That the responsibility to complete budget preparations for the 

shared service be delegated to the Section 151 Officers. 
 

4. URGENT PART I BUSINESS 
 

None. 
 
5. EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 

Not required. 
 
PART II 
 
6. URGENT PART II BUSINESS 
  

None. 
 
 

Page 6



EAST HERTS COUNCIL 
 
EAST HERTS COUNCIL AND STEVENAGE BOROUGH COUNCIL 
JOINT REVENUES AND BENEFITS COMMITTEE – 29JUNE2015 

REPORT BY THE HEAD OF REVENUES AND BENEFITS SHARED 
SERVICE  

QUARTERLY UPDATE  

WARD(S) AFFECTED:  ALL 
      

Purpose/Summary of Report: 

• To report to Committee the position in respect of the following 
areas: 
 
o Performance reporting 
o Other challenges 

 

RECOMMENDATION FOR EAST HERTS COUNCIL AND 
STEVENAGE BOROUGH COUNCIL JOINT REVENUES AND 
BENEFITS COMMITTEE: That 

(A) The report be received. 

 
1.0 Background  
 
1.1 This report includes an overview of performance in 2014/15 and 

details future objectives and challenges. 
 
2.0 Report 
 
2.1      Performance reporting 
 
2.1.1   The workload received by the Benefits Service in 2014/15 

hasincreased again.  Stevenage increased by 7.9%, whilst East 
Herts increased by 3.8%.  Since 2010/11 this means the workload 
for Stevenage has increased by 58% and East Herts 69%. 

 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 7



2.1.2   Council Tax collection. 
 
 The performance measure looks at the proportion of the current 

years liability collected in that year. 
 
 Stevenage collection rate was 96%, which is the highest since 

2011/12, and East Herts 98.2, an improvement on 2013/14. 
 
2.1.3Business Rates  
  
 The performance measure looks at the proportion of the current 

years liability collected in that year. 
 Stevenage collection rate was 97.38%, which is the highest since 

before 2011/12, and East Herts 96.97, an improvement on 
2013/14. 

 
2.1.4 Housing Benefit processing. (N181) 
  
 This performance indicator measures the average processing 

time for new claims and changes in circumstances. 
 Stevenage N181 was 10.82 days, the best result since at least 

2009/10. 
  
 East Herts N181 was 10.28, close to the performance for 13/14. 
 These results demonstrate a harmonising of performance across 

the two Councils. 
  
 These core indicators represent a significant achievement for the 

shared service in the face of the welfare reforms and changes in 
local government finance. 

 
2.2Discretionary Housing Payments 
 
2.2.1 The demand for Discretionary Housing payments arising from the 

changes in the welfare reforms has not abated. Unfortunately the 
Government grant for 2015/16 has reduced significantly for both 
Councils. In 14/15 Stevenage topped up the grant by 
approximately £13,000 to meet the demand. 

 
2.2.2   Members have previously expressed their desire to support those 

most vulnerable residents, particularly those with significant 
disabilities.   

 

Page 8



 

2014/15 2015/16 Reduction 

Stevenage £183,788 £156,565 £27,223 

East Herts £156,347 £124,641 £31,706 

 Totals £340,135 £281,206 £58,929 

 

2.2.3The most significant area of spend continues to be in relation to the 
spare room subsidy. 

 
2.3 Benefits CAP 
 
2.3.1   The Benefit cap is now running as a ‘regular’ feature of the 

Benefits scheme. Customers are affected by the CAP for various 
periods of time, but the number affected at any one time remains 
small, although increasing.The table below demonstrates the 
trend during 2014/15. 

 

 

2.3.2  At the time of writing the Queens Speech is expected to include 
announcements of a reduction in the CAP level from £26k to 
£23k. It is not known at this point how many more families will be 
affected by this potential adjustment. 

 
2.4 Universal Credit. 
 
2.4.1   Both Stevenage and East Herts should be affected to a small 

degree by the introduction of universal credit by the very end of 
2015/16. This is currently only affecting “single people with no 
dependent children, who would otherwise apply for JSA”.   

 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

MAY SEP DEC MAR

EHC

SBC

Page 9



2.4.2   East Herts has yet to be contacted by the DWP in respect of any 
role that it might wish to engage with during this particular role 
out.  Stevenage are working on options through their Housing 
Services department.  This initial period only runs to 31/03/2016 
before a new phase is expected. 

 
2.4.3   The speed of roll out is unclear currently due to the recent general 

elections. It is anticipated that more information will become 
available as the new administration settles in. 

 
2.4.4   There remains no indication of any scheme for pensioners who 

will until further notice remain eligible for Housing Benefit. 
 
2.5      Queens speech 
 
2.5.1   The Queens speech announceda number of policy objectives that 

will impact on Housing Benefit and Council Tax Support. These 
include; 

 
• A working-age benefit freeze. 
 The new legislation would freeze the main rates of the 

majority of working age benefits, tax credits and Child Benefit 
for two years from 2016-17. Pensioners would be protected, 
as would benefits relating to the additional costs of disability. 
Statutory payments, such as Statutory Maternity, Paternity, 
and Adoption Pay would also be exempted. 

• The new legislation would lower the benefit cap so that the 
total amount of benefits a non-working family can receive in a 
year would be £23,000. 

 Households are exempt where someone is entitled to 
Working Tax Credit or is in receipt of benefits relating to 
additional costs of disability, or War Widow’s and Widower’s 
Pension. 

• Put in place a new Youth Allowance for 18-21 year olds with 
stronger work related conditionality from Day 1. After 6 
months they will be required to go on an apprenticeship, 
training or community work placement; 

• Remove automatic entitlement to housing support for 18-21 
year olds; 

 
2.5 2   We are unable to change the Council Tax Support scheme 

regulations midyear, and accordingly there mayl be a disparity in 
entitlement for these customers. 

Page 10



2.5.3There is a significant amount of speculation at this time around 
further welfare reforms but no formal notice has been received in 
respect of any yet. 

 
2.6Single Fraud Investigation Service (SFIS) 
 
2.6.1   The DWP’s single fraud investigation service subsumed the 

Benefits fraud team from the 1 May 2015 for both Stevenage and 
East Herts. 

 
2.6.2   New procedures for referring cases to the DWP are in place, but 

we remain responsible for providing relevant information,  carrying 
out adjudications and the collection of any overpayments.  

 
2.6.3   The monthly data matching exercises also continue and we 

remain responsible for the initial investigation and evaluation of 
these prior to any referral back to the DWP for formal 
investigation when appropriate. 

 
2.6.4   Both Councils are taking part in the DWP’s latest initiative to 

reduce fraud and error called FERIS.  We successfully bid for a 
small amount of funding for resources to specifically review higher 
risk cases, and achieved the maximum available award. All the 
funding must be used on additional staff costs. 

 
2.6.5   Further funding may be available if the project identifies 

substantial fraud or error which reduces the ongoing benefit 
awards. This will of course increase the amount and value of 
overpayments which need to be recovered and reduce the level of 
full subsidy received by each council. 

 

 FERIS AWARD 

Stevenage £14, 364 

East Herts £13, 155 

 Totals £27,519 

 

 

 

Page 11



2.7Shared Anti-Fraud Service (SAFS) 
 
2.7.1 Stevenage and East Herts are now members of the SAFS group, 

part of the Shared Internal Audit Service, who will deliver a range 
of anti-fraud functions for the member authorities. 

 
2.7.2 We are awaiting details of the services they will provide to the 

shared service. There will be more detailed briefings on the 
service being provided, directly from SAFS coming out in the near 
future.  The service was officially launched on 10 June 2015 and 
a hot line has already been established. 

 
2.8New Business rates team 
 
2.8.1   The shared service has established a small specialist Business 

Rates team following the additional resources allocated to the 
service re-sizing report which supported permanent recruitment to 
the shared service. 

 
2.8.2   The team’s objectives include increasing in –year recovery rates, 

reducing prior year arrears and looking for opportunities to 
increase the rateable value on which the Councils income is 
assessed. 

 
2.8.3   The work of the team is supported by the use of an online 

business rates product which provides essential information about 
properties and how they have been assessed for business rates. 

 
2.8.4   It also provides valuation advice on the type and value of appeals 

against rateable values lodged with the Valuation Tribunal.   
 
2.8.5   The team aims to have a closer relationship with business rates 

payers to ensure that advice on discounts, exemptions and 
payment arrangements is provided effectively. 

 
2.9Council Tax 
 
2.9.1   The shared service had originally set up the Revenues team to be 

generic across both Council Tax and Business rates, in both 
billing and recovery stages. 

 
2.9.2   The establishment of the separate business rates team has 

enabled further specialisation within the remaining staff into billing 

Page 12



and collection. These staff work as generic revenue Officers, but 
specialise in one of these two disciplines, whilst being able to 
provide cover for both areas.  This additional focus on billing and 
recovery is intended to further improve in-year collection rates as 
well as addressing prior year arrears. 

 
2.10Training 
 
2.10.1 At least four staff will be training for qualifications with the IRRV 

(Institute of Revenues Rating and Valuation) this autumn, and six 
staff have recently completed NVQ’s and are awaiting their final 
assessments. 

 
2.10.2 This investment in staff and the increased knowledge and 

confidence that they bring to the shared service provides  a 
positive position from which to address the challenges ahead. 

 
2.11Service plan objectives 2015/16 
 
2.11.1 The agreed service plan is detailed below. This illustrates both 

thedirection of travel and emphasis of non operational activity 
during this year. 

 

•        Evaluate the Council Tax Support scheme (CTS) and 
make recommendations for a revised scheme if appropriate 
for 2016/17. 

•        Evaluate the NNDR valuation list and explore options to 
ensure that the maximum appropriate rating valuation (RV) is 
being collected. 

•        Implement the changes to the benefits system resulting 
from the welfare reform, continue working with partners to 
support customers, and develop the 'Here to Help' agenda, 
whilst responding proactively to any plans for the roll out of 
universal credit. 

•        Implement and develop new Business Rates Team 
developing relationships with charge payers and increasing in 
year recovery rates and reducing outstanding arrears. 

•        Review the way in which Benefits service are delivered 
and evaluate a re-engineering of the service to provide 
assessment at point of contact. 

Page 13



•        To continue channel shift to self service options for 
customers and to explore further self service facilities for 
future development. 

•        Review the way in which Council tax is collected and 
recovered and consider alternatives to increase in year 
collection rate and arrears reduction. 

•        To manage the transition for Benefit and other fraud from 
internal provision to SFIS (DWP) and SAFS (shared anti-
fraud service). 

 
2.12 Other areas of focus during the year. 
 
2.12.1Print and post contract 

 We are currently exploring a new print and post contract which in 
addition to undertaking the annual billing activity, is intended to  
produce savings for the Councils and create some additional 
capacity to achieve the objectives detailed in the service plan. 
This would be achieved by sending the majority of outgoing mail 
to be printed and enveloped by the company. They can achieve 
significant savings on postage not otherwise accessible to us. 

2.12.2New document management system 

 A business case is being drawn up in conjunction with the shared 
IT service to replace the existing document management system. 
This will provide improved performance monitoring information as 
well as greater flexibility and efficiency in the ways of working. 

2.12.3Enforcement  framework 

 The service also hopes to use a new Enforcement framework to 
review current enforcement arrangements and explore any 
additional services that will assist recovery rates.  

2.12.4Supporting customers 

 The service is also exploring additional sources of  free advice 
and support for customers in financial difficulty, with a view to 
early intervention  preventing  the additional costs of enforcement  
action being necessary. 

 

 

Page 14



3.0Implications/Consultations 

3.1 Information on any corporate issues and consultation associated 
with this report can be found within Essential Reference Paper 
‘A’. 

 
Background Papers: 
None. 
 
Contact Members: Councillor J Lloyd, Executive Member for  

   Resources (Stevenage Borough Council). 
     
    Councillor E Buckmaster, Executive Member for 

   Health and Wellbeing (East Herts    
   Council). 

 
    Councillor G Williamson, Executive Member for 

   Finance and Support Services (East Herts  
   Council). 

 
Contact Officer:  Su Tarran – Head of Revenues and Benefits 

 Shared Service, Extn: 2075.  

Report Author:  Su Tarran – Head of Revenues and Benefits  

   Shared Service, Extn: 2075. 

Page 15



Page 16

This page is intentionally left blank



 
  

ESSENTIAL REFERENCE PAPER ‘A’ 
 

IMPLICATIONS/CONSULTATIONS: 
 

Contribution to 
the Council’s 
Corporate 
Priorities/Object
ives (delete as 
appropriate): 

East Herts Council: 
 
People– Fair and accessible services for those that 
use them and opportunities for everyone to 
contribute. 

This priority focuses on delivering strong services and 
seeking to enhance the quality of life, health and 
wellbeing, particularly for those who are vulnerable. 

 
Stevenage Borough Council: 
 
A Vibrant Town: 
Improve the economy and encourage financial resilience. 
Regenerate the town centre and neighbourhoods. 
A Quality Environment: 
Provide affordable homes and housing growth. 
Help people feel safe. 
An Excellent Council: 
Deliver value for money. 
Putting customers first. 

Consultation: N/A 

 

Legal: N/A 

 

Financial: N/A 

Human 
Resource: 

N/A 
 

Risk 
Management: 

N/A 
 

Health and 
wellbeing – 
issues and 
impacts: 
 

N/A 

 
 

Page 17



Page 18

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	5 Minutes - 19 January 2015
	6 Quarterly Update
	Quarterly Update - ERPA (implications)


